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Appearances: David E. Street, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor, US.
Department of Labor, Phil adel phia, Pennsylvania, for
the M ne Safety and Heal th Adm nistration;

Ronal d S. Cusano, Esq., Rose, Schm dt, D xon, Hasley,
VWhyte & Hardesty, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, for
Consol i dati on Coal Conpany.

Bef or e: Judge Cook
I. Procedural Background

On Decenber 26, 1979, Consolidation Coal Conpany (Consol)
filed a notice of contest in Docket No. WEVA 80-160-R pursuant to
section 105(d) of the Federal Mne Safety and Health Act of 1977,
30 U.S.C. 0801 et seq. (Supp. Il 1979) (1977 Mne Act) to
contest Citation No. 633821. The citation was issued on Novenber
26, 1979, pursuant to section 104(a) of the 1977 Mne Act citing
Consol for an alleged violation of nandatory safety standard 30
C.F.R 075.301. The citation contains the additional allegation
that the cited violation was of such nature as could
significantly and substantially contribute to the cause and
effect of a mne safety or health hazard. Consol's notice
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of contest alleged, inter alia, (1) that the citation failed to
cite a condition or practice which constituted a violation of
mandat ory safety standard 30 C F.R [075.301; and (2) that no
conditions or practices existed in the mne which could
significantly and substantially contribute to the cause and
effect of a mne safety or health hazard.

An answer was filed by the Mne Safety and Heal th
Admi ni stration (MSHA) on or around January 7, 1980. In its
answer, MSHA (1) admitted the issuance of the citation and stated
that it was properly issued pursuant to section 104(a) of the
1977 M ne Act; (2) stated that a violation of a mandatory
standard occurred; and (3) denied all other allegations contained
in the notice of contest. Additionally, MSHA requested a
conti nuance pending the filing of the associated civil penalty
case. The requested continuance was granted by an order issued
on February 5, 1980.

On June 23, 1980, MSHA filed a proposal for a penalty in
Docket No. WEVA 80-379 pursuant to section 110(a) of the 1977
M ne Act alleging violations of two provisions of the Code of
Federal Regul ations. The proposal for a penalty enconpasses
Citation No. 633821. Consol's answer was filed on July 9, 1980.

The hearing was held on July 22, 1980, in Washi ngton
Pennsyl vani a, at which tinme evidence was presented in a
consol i dat ed proceedi ng addressing G tation No. 633821. (FN. 1)
Representatives of both parties were present and parti ci pated.
Exhi bit No. M3 was reserved for the posthearing filing by MSHA
of a conputer printout setting forth Consol's history of previous
violations at the Shoemaker M ne for which assessnents have been
paid during the 24 nonths precedi ng Novenber 26, 1979. Foll ow ng
the presentation of the evidence, a schedule was set for the
filing of posthearing briefs and proposed findi ngs of fact and
concl usi ons of |aw. However, the briefing schedul e was
subsequently revised at MSHA' s request.

On August 21, 1980, Petitioner filed a conputer printout in
Docket No. WEVA 80-379 setting forth Consol's history of previous
violations at the Shoemaker M ne for which assessnents have been
pai d, begi nni ng Novenber 19, 1977, and endi ng Novenber 18, 1979.
The followi ng stipulation was filed in conjunction therewth:

The parties * * * stipulate that, for the purposes of
this proceeding, the relevant portion of the attached
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conputer printout, programID. AS45904, is that portion
pertaining to [Consol's] history of violations at the
Shoenaker m ne during the period Novenber 19, 1977 to
Novenmber 18, 1979. [MBHA] offers the attached printout

in evidence as Exhibit M 3. [Consol] has no objection to
reciept [sic] of the printout in evidence for the linmted
pur pose set forth above.

Exhi bit M3 was received in evidence by an order issued on
Sept enber 23, 1980.

Consol and MSHA fil ed posthearing briefs on Septenber 26,
1980, and Septenber 29, 1980, respectively. Consol filed a reply
brief on October 10, 1980.

1. Violations Charged in Docket No. WEVA 80-379

Citation No. Dat e 30 C.F.R Standard
633657 11/ 19/ 79 75.303 (FN. 2)
633821 11/ 26/ 79 75. 301

I11. Wtnesses and Exhibits
A. Wtnesses

MSHA called as its witness Federal mne inspector Charles
Cof fi el d.

Consol called as its witness Kit Phares, the regiona
i nspector for the Muundsville Operations of Consol's Eastern
Di vi si on.

B. Exhibits
1. WMBHA introduced the follow ng exhibits in evidence:

M1 is a copy of Citation No. 633821, Novenber 26, 1979, 30
C.F.R 075.301, and a copy of the term nation thereof.

M2 is a copy of the Shoemaker M ne's approved ventil ation
system and net hane and dust control plan in effect on Novenber
26, 1979, and submitted for revision on May 9, 1980.

M3 is a computer printout setting forth Consol's history of
previous violations at the Shoemaker M ne for which assessnents
have been paid, begi nning Novenber 19, 1977, and endi ng Novenber
18, 1979.

2. Consol introduced the follow ng exhibits in evidence:
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O1lis amp of the 5 North Face section of the Shoemaker M ne.

O 2 is a copy of Inspector Coffield s "inspector's
statenent,"” MSHA Form 7000-4, pertaining to M1

I V. | ssues

A. The followi ng issues are presented in the
above- capti oned notice of contest proceeding:

1. \Whether the condition or practice cited in Ctation No.
633821 constitutes a violation of mandatory safety standard 30
C. F.R 0O75. 301.

2. If the condition or practice cited in Citation No.
633821 constitutes a violation of mandatory safety standard 30
C.F.R 075.301, then whether such violation was of such nature
as could significantly and substantially contribute to the cause
and effect of a mne safety or health hazard.

B. Two basic issues are involved in the above-captioned
civil penalty proceeding: (1) did a violation of the Code of
Federal Regul ations occur, and (2) what anount should be assessed
as a penalty if a violation is found to have occurred? In
determ ning the anount of civil penalty that should be assessed
for a violation, the law requires that six factors be considered:
(1) history of previous violations; (2) appropriateness of the
penalty to the size of the operator's business; (3) whether the
operator was negligent; (4) effect of the penalty on the
operator's ability to continue in business; (5) gravity of the
violation; and (6) the operator's good faith in attenpting rapid
abat ement of the violation.

V. pinion and Fi ndings of Fact
A.  Stipulations

1. The Administrative Law Judge has jurisdiction in the
above- capti oned proceedings (Tr. 5-7).

2. Consol operates in interstate comerce, and the
Shoenaker M ne is covered under the 1977 Mne Act (Tr. 6-7).

3. Consol is a large operator, and the Shoemaker Mne is a
large mine (Tr. 6-7). Specifically, the size of Consol is rated
at 44,855,465 tons of coal per year, and the size of the
Shoenaker Mne is rated at 1,791,721 tons of coal per year (Tr.
11).

4. Consol abated the violation within the tine set by the
i nspector and it acted in good faith in doing so (Tr. 5-6).

B. Gccurrence of Violation

Federal mne inspector Charles Coffield issued Ctation No.
633821 at Consol's Shoemaker M ne during the course of his



November 26, 1979, inspection
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(Tr. 15-16). The citation alleges a violation of mandatory
safety standard 30 CF. R [75.301 in that only approxi mately
4,600 cubic feet of air per mnute (cfm) was reaching the | ast
open crosscut between the No. 2 and No. 3 entries of the Five
North Face left side section (047) (Exh. M1). The citation

all eges a violation of that portion of mandatory safety standard
30 C.F.R [O75.301 which requires that "[t]he m ninum quantity of
air reaching the | ast open crosscut in any pair or set of

devel oping entries and the | ast open crosscut in any pair or set
of devel opi ng roons shall be 9,000 cubic feet a mnute." (See
Tr. 61.)

The briefs filed by the parties present two questions for
resolution in determ ning whether a violation occurred. The
first question relates to the accuracy of the 4,600 cfmair
vol ume measur enment obtai ned by the inspector, and to the nethods
used by inspector to obtain that air vol une neasurenent. The
second question relates to whether the air volume nmeasurenment, as
stated, constituted a violation of the law at the tinme and
| ocation invol ved.

The resolution of the first question turns upon Consol's
chal l enge to the accuracy of the air velocity neasurenent used by
the inspector in his conputations to determ ne that only
approxi mately 4,600 cfmof air was reaching the | ast open
crosscut between the No. 2 and No. 3 entries of the Five North
Face | eft side section. An anenoneter was used to nake the air
velocity nmeasurenent. It appears fromthe record that an
accurate air quantity conputation, based upon an air velocity
readi ng taken with an anenoneter, requires the follow ng: An
approved, calibrated anenoneter is used to obtain an air reading.
An anenoneter correction chart is then used to convert this
readi ng into an accurate air velocity measurenment. The width and
t he height of the crosscut are determ ned, and the three figures
are nultiplied together to obtain an air quantity measurenment in
terms of cfm

Consol 's challenge to the accuracy of the 4,600 cfmreadi ng
rests solely upon the assertion that |Inspector Coffield could not
state for certain whether he had or had not used the anenoneter
correction chart (Consol's Posthearing Brief, pp. 18-19; Consol's
Reply Brief, p. 8). Inspector Coffield testified on direct
exam nation during MSHA's case-in-chief: (1) that he used an
approved, calibrated anenoneter to take an air velocity reading;
(2) that, to the best of his recollection, he obtained a reading
of 38 feet per mnute; (3) that he had already taken a wi dth and
a hei ght neasurenent; and (4) that he nultiplied the three
figures together and obtained an air quantity figure of slightly
less than 4,600 cfm (Tr. 16). Consol's position as to whether
the inspector did or did not use the correction chart is based
upon the following testinmony elicited fromlnspector Coffield on
cross-exam nation during MSHA's rebuttal case:

Q M. Coffield, your anenmoneter that you used to take
the readings, is it equipped with a correction chart?



A.  Yes, sir.

Q D d you use the correction chart for taking the
readi ngs on the date in question?
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A. The correction chart, | think --

Q The answer would be yes or no, | think, to that
guesti on.

A. | don't know if | can answer it yes or no.
I will say | |looked at -- yes, | |ooked at the
correction chart.

Q You looked at it?
A.  Uh-huh
(Tr. 96-97).

I find that the evidence is sufficient to support a finding
that the inspector nade use of the correction chart. The fact
that he | ooked at the chart renders it nore probabl e than not
that he made use of the chart in conputing air velocity. The
record al so contains sufficient i ndependent evidence to
corroborate the accuracy of the 4,600 cfmfigure. M. Phares
testified that Inspector Coffield perforned a series of
conputations prior to stating that there was only 4,600 cfm
reaching the [ ast open crosscut between No. 2 and No. 3 entries
(Tr. 73). M. Phares' position of the date of the inspection
does not appear to have included any disagreenment with the
accuracy of the inspector's 4,600 cfmreading. It appears that
t he di sagreenment was confined to the |ocation where the air
vel ocity measurenent was obtained, with M. Phares contendi ng at
the tine that the reading shoul d have been taken in the [ ast open
crosscut between No. 1 and No. 2 entries (Tr. 69-70). M. Phares
made conput ations based on an air velocity reading taken in the
| ast open crosscut between No. 1 and No. 2 entries and obtained a
26,000 cfmfigure (Tr. 69-70). Considering the arrangenent of
the ventilation system M. Phares did not consider the
di fference between his reading and Inspector Coffield s reading
to be unusual (Tr. 75). Accordingly, | find that only
approxi mately 4,600 cfmof air was reaching the | ast open
crosscut between No. 2 and No. 3 entries.

Consol 's chall enge to the met hod of neasurenent centers
around t he snoke tube test perforned by Inspector Coffield
(Consol's Posthearing Brief, p. 19). Consol challenges the test
on various grounds. However, the evidence establishes that the
results of the snoke tube test did not forma basis for the
i nspector's determnation that only approximtely 4,600 cfm of
air per mnute was reaching the | ast open crosscut between No. 2
and No. 3 entries. The evidence clearly shows that the snoke
tube test was performed after the inspector informed M. Phares
that he had obtained a 4,600 cfmfigure using the air velocity
figure derived fromthe anenoneter reading (Tr. 93-94).
Accordingly, it is unnecessary to address Consol's challenge to
t he snoke tube test in order to resolve the i ssues presented
her ei n.
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The second question raised by the parties is whether an air
vol ume neasurenment of 4,600 cfmat the |ocation invol ved
constituted a violation of 30 C F.R [75.301. The record
establ i shes the foll ow ng:

The Five North Face section of the Shoemaker Mne was a two
m ner section consisting of 10 entries nunbered in sequence from
left to right (Exh. O1, Tr. 68-69). Each entry contained a
"working face." The type of ventilation systemin use was
described as a split systemof ventilation (Tr. 58-59). n
November 26, 1979, the working face where coal was being
extracted, on the left side of the Five North Face section, was
located in the No. 1 entry (Tr. 68-69, Point A on Exh. O1). The
m ning plan on the day shift was to advance the No. 1 entry a
di stance of approximately 100 to 120 feet (Tr. 68). None of the
other entries on the left side of the Five North Face section
were to be mned during the shift (Tr. 84). (FN.3) Ventilation was
acconpl i shed through the use of permanent stoppings, check
curtains, regulators and a systemof fans (Exh. O1, Tr. 79, 87).

The ventilation systemon the left side of the section was
set up as follows: Permanent stoppings had been installed in the
crosscuts between No. 2 and No. 3 entries, up to and including
t he second crosscut outby the last open crosscut (Exh. O1). A
check curtain (check curtain No. 1) had been installed in a
crosscut between the No. 1 and No. 2 entries. The crosscut
contai ni ng check curtain No. 1 was |ocated one crosscut outby the
| ast open crosscut (Exh. O1). An additional check curtain
(check curtain No. 2) had been installed in the No. 2 entry at a
poi nt approxi mately m dway between the first crosscut outby the
| ast open crosscut and the second crosscut outby the |ast open
crosscut (Exh. O1). Under this setup, the left side of the
section was being ventilated with Nos. 3, 4 and 5 entries, and
part of No. 2 entry, on intake air. The No. 1 entry and the
remai nder of No. 2 entry were on return air (Exh. O1, Tr. 69).
An auxiliary exhaust fan was located in the No. 1 entry just
outby the point where it intersected with the |ast open crosscut
(Exh. O1, Tr. 79). According to M. Phares, the return air
course began in the No. 1 entry at the |last open crosscut (Tr.
69) .

Check curtain No. 1 was loose in a few places around the
edges, but it was basically up and basically sound (Tr. 29,
33-34). Check curtain No. 2 was al nost conpletely torn down;
specifically, approximately two-thirds of it had been torn down
and approximately one-third of it remained up (Tr. 29,

31-33). (FN 4)
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As noted above, Inspector Coffield nmeasured the volune of air in
the | ast open crosscut between No. 2 and No. 3 entries and
obt ai ned a nmeasurement of 4,600 cfm M. Phares pronptly
measured the volume of air in the [ast open crosscut between No.
1 and No. 2 entries and obtained a neasurenent of 26,000 cfm

MSHA contends that | nspector Coffield took his neasurenents
in the proper location, i.e., in the |last open crosscut between
No. 2 and No. 3 entries. MSHA points to the provisions of the
approved ventilation system and met hane and dust control plan in
ef fect on Novenber 26, 1979 (Exh. M 2), as designating the |ine
of pillars between No. 2 and No. 3 entries as the line of pillars
separating the intake and return air courses. Consol disagrees,
contendi ng that the neasurenents were required to be taken in the
| ast open crosscut between No. 1 and No. 2 entries because, under
the ventilation set up in use on Novenber 26, 1979, the |ine of
pillars between the No. 1 and No. 2 entries was the |ine of
pillars separating the intake and return air courses. Conso
mai ntai ns that the point at which intake air becones return air
is of significance in making this determ nation, and contends
that intake air becomes return air only after it has passed over
the | ast active working face. Accordingly, Consol argues that
the return air course did not begin until the air had passed over
the | ast active working face, in this case the face of the No. 1
entry where work was actually in progress.

Consol's position is not sustainable fromtwo different standpoints.

First, its position can be maintained only if it relies upon
the provisions of 30 CF.R [075.301-3(a). This section of the
regul ati ons was promul gated by the adm nistrators of the 1969
Coal Act to set forth a place they considered adequate to nmeasure
the quantity of air which Congress determ ned was required to
reach the | ast open crosscut. In enacting section 303(b) of the
1969 Coal Act, Congress decreed that the m nimumquantity of air
reaching the last open crosscut in any pair or set of devel oping
entries shall be 9,000 cfm Therefore, Congress determ ned that
this quantity of air nmust reach the |ast open crosscut where it
i ntersects each devel oping entry.

The regul ation as to the place to neasure the quantity of
air states, in part, that "the volune of air shall be neasured in
the | ast open crosscut
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through the line of pillars that separates the intake and return
air courses of each split.” 30 C.F.R [O75.301-3(a).

Consol argues that such place of neasurenent is the place
where intake air becones return air and that that place varies
such that it occurs at that particular working face where m ning
is actually being done.

Consol, however, subnmitted a ventilation plan that was
approved by the Governnent wherein it set forth a specific
provi sion that pernmanent stoppings will be maintained to separate
intake and return air courses up to and including the third
connecting crosscut outby the faces. Exhibit O 1 shows the
pl aces where Consol installed its permanent stoppings. Conso
itself then designated that |ine of stoppings as the separation
between the intake air course and the return air course.

Consol can hardly now claimthat it did not affirmatively
determ ne, under its own ventilation plan, the separation between
the intake and return air courses. This, of course, is between
the No. 2 and No. 3 entries. Therefore, as a mnimm the air
readi ng nmust be 9,000 cfmin the crosscut between No. 2 and No. 3
entries. (FN.5)

There is another reason why Consol's position is not well
founded. As stated above, the statute in question requires that
9,000 cfmof air reach the |ast open crosscut where it intersects
each devel oping entry.

We know that the quantity of air in the | ast open crosscut
between the No. 2 and No. 3 entries was only 4,600 cfm W al so
know t hat the witness for Consol stated that in his opinion the
quantity of air in the | ast open crosscut between the No. 5 and
No. 4 entries and the No. 4 and No. 3 entries was possibly |ess
than 4,600 cfm (Tr. 88-89).

Therefore, Consol's position results in a situation wherein
the air reaching the |ast open crosscut in No. 5 No. 4, and No.
3 entries could be less than 9,000 cfm and Consol woul d nmaintain
that this was not a violation of |aw

However, this condition would violate the basic intent of
the statute since 9,000 cfmof air would not be reaching the | ast
open crosscut where it intersects the No. 3, No. 4, and No. 5
entries. Each of these entries contains a working face. The term
"working face" is defined as "any place in a coal mine in which
wor k of extracting coal fromits natural deposit in the earth is
performed during the mning cycle." 30 CF. R 075.2(g)(1).
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Met hane is released fromall of the working faces in the m ning
cycl e even though coal is being extracted fromonly one of those
faces at a given tine (Tr. 34-37, 91-92). (FN.6) Therefore, air of
that quantity is needed to maintain safe conditions in the entire
m ning cycle. This is why Congress requires that such quantity
of air reach the | ast open crosscut where it intersects each of
t hese devel oping entries.

The case of Zeigler Coal Conpany, 3 IBMA 78, 81, |.D. 173,
1973- 1974 CCH CSHD par. 17,615 (1974), has been cited. In that
case, the Interior Board of Mne Operations Appeals (Board) cited
30 CF.R 075.301-3 and indicated that the |ocation at which the
air volunme nmeasurenment is to be made, which is through the Iine
of pillars separating the intake and return air courses, must be
determined with reference to the point at which intake air
becones return air. 3 IBVMA 78 at 83-84. As stated above, in
view of the definition of "working face", the faces in each entry
were working faces. W know that intake air was proceeding up to
the faces in the No. 5, No. 4, No. 3, and No. 2 entries.

VWhen the intake air in No. 5 entry reached the No. 5 working
face that air becane return air since it would be carrying
nmet hane away fromthe face area (Tr. 34-39, 91-92) whether or not
m ni ng was being done at that nmoment in that particul ar worKking
face in the mning cycle. That return air would then be drawn to
the left of the section through the |ast open crosscut by the

auxiliary fan in the No. 1 entry. Intake air was also com ng up
the No. 4 and No. 3 and No. 2 entries as shown on Exhibit O 1.
W know that that air was intake air at least until it reached

the | ast open crosscut and that it was return air as it proceeded
to the left of each entry through the | ast open crosscut.

Consequently, the provisions of 30 CF. R [075.301-3 as to
the place of air neasurenent can be applied in the [ast open
crosscut between each entry since the air is continuously
changing fromintake to return air.

No matter what Kkinds of argunents are devel oped as to
| ocations of neasurenents, (FN.7) it is patently clear that the
finding of only 4,600 cfmas the nmeasurenent of quantity of air
obtained in the | ast open crosscut between the No. 2 and No. 3
entries, is clear evidence of a violation of 30 C F.R 075.301
in that 9,000 cfmof air was not reaching the | ast open crosscut
in this set of devel oping entries.

Accordingly, it is found that a violation of 30 CF. R 0O
75. 301 has been established by a preponderance of the evidence.
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C. Negligence of the Operator

The pl acenent and condition of the check curtains was
responsi ble for the |low air readi ng obtained by the inspector
(Tr. 25, 29, 71, 77-78, 89). The parties denonstrated
substanti al di sagreement as to whether the placenent of the
curtains conplied with the applicable portions of the approved
ventil ation system and methane and dust control plan. The
drawi ngs on page 12 of the plan depict a typical ventilation
system applicable to a mning cycle utilizing 8 entries and one
or two continuous mners. The portion of the mine in which the
vi ol ation occurred had 10 entries. Paragraph 7 on page 9 of the
pl an states that the "section and face ventil ation system
(typical for each system of advance and retreat mning) shown
will vary in the nunber of entries, entry and crosscut centers,
and crosscut angles."

It appears that the placenment of the check curtains did not
conply with the provisions of the approved ventilation system and
met hane and dust control plan. Furthernore, the flexibility
af forded by paragraph 7 on page 9 of the plan does not extend so
far as to permt the operator to place hinself in violation of 30
C. F.R 0O75. 301.

The inspector did not know whet her Consol knew that the
check curtain in the No. 2 entry was down (Tr. 37). However, the
testinmony of M. Phares indicates that the placenent of the
curtains was the responsibility of a section foreman (Tr. 79).

It can therefore be concluded that Consol knew or should have
known of the existence of one of the conditions principally
responsi ble for the low air reading. Accordingly, it is found
t hat Consol denonstrated ordi nary negli gence.

D. Gavity of the Violation

Inspector Coffield testified that the violation was serious
because nethane coul d accunulate on the left side of the section
as a result of the reduced ventilation (Tr. 34-35). An
accunul ati on of methane could figure promnently in a nmne
explosion (Tr. 37). M. Phares testified that the section
i berates nethane (Tr. 72). According to Inspector Coffield, the
m ne |iberates such quantities of nethane that excessive
guantities have been detected on the belt lines (Tr. 35).
However, it does not appear that Inspector Coffield issued any
citations at the tinme based upon excessive quantities of mnethane
(Tr. 54). The section was basically dry (Tr. 35).

M. Phares testified that it was possible that [ess than
4,600 cfmof ventilation was present in the crosscut between No.
3 and No. 4 entries, and that it was possible that such
ventilation was even progressively lower in the crosscut between
No. 4 and No. 5 entries (Tr. 88). According to |Inspector
Coffield, the progressively lower air velocity readings in the
| ast open crosscut between No. 3 and No. 4 entries, and No. 4 and
No. 5 entries, would affect the accunul ati on of nethane. The
| ower the air readings, the nore nethane would or could



accunul ate (Tr. 91-92).
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In view of the foregoing, it is found that the violation was serious.

E. Significant and Substantial Criterion

The citation contains the allegation that the violation was
of such nature as could significantly and substantially
contribute to the cause and effect of a mne safety or health
hazard. |In Al abama By-Products Corporation, 7 |IBVA 85, 94, 83
|.D. 574, 1976-1977 CCH OSHD par. 21,298 (1976), the Board held
that the significant and substantial criterion bars the issuance
of citations in "two categories of violations, nanmely, violations
posing no risk of injury at all, that is to say, purely technica
vi ol ations, and violations posing a source of any injury which
has only a renote or specul ative chance of comng to fruition.”
A corollary to this proposition is that a violation of a
mandat ory standard may be significant and substantial "w thout
regard to the seriousness or gravity of the injury likely to
result fromthe hazard posed by the violation, that is, an
i nspector need not find a risk of serious bodily harm |et alone
death." 7 IBVA at 94.

As noted above, the violation was serious. It was not a
purely technical violation. Considering the |Iow air vol une
readi ng conputed by the inspector, the mne's |evel of nethane
liberation, the potential for nmethane to accumul ate, and the
wel | -recogni zed expl osi ve properties of nmethane, it cannot be
said that the source of injury had only a renote or specul ative
chance of coming to fruition. Accordingly, it is found that the
vi ol ati on was of such nature as could significantly and
substantially contribute to the cause and effect of a mne safety
or health hazard.

F. Good Faith in Attenpting Rapid Abat enment

The parties stipulated that Consol abated the violation
within the tine set by Inspector Coffield and that Consol acted
in good faith in doing so (Tr. 5). Accordingly, it is found that
Consol denonstrated good faith in attenpting rapid abatenent.

G History of Previous Violations
Respondent's history of previous violations at the Shoemaker

M ne for which assessnents have been paid, begi nning Novenber 19,
1977, and endi ng Novenber 18, 1979, is sunmarized as foll ows:

30 CF.R Nunber of Paid Tot a

St andar d Assessnent s Anpunt Pai d
Al sections 962 $180, 851
75. 301 1 $122

H Size of the Operator's Business

The parties stipulated that Consol is a | arge operator, and
that the Shoemaker Mne is a large mine (Tr. 6-7). Specifically,
the parties stipulated that size of Consol is rated at 44, 855, 465



tons of coal per year, and
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the size of the Shoemaker Mne is rated at 1,791,721 tons of coa
per year (Tr. 11).

I. Effect of a Civil Penalty on the Operator's Ability to
Rermai n i n Busi ness

No evi dence was presented to establish that the assessnent
of a civil penalty will affect Consol's ability to remain in
busi ness. In Hall Coal Conpany, 1 IBMA 175, 79 |.D. 668,
1971-1973 CCH OSHD par. 15,380 (1972), the Board hel d that
evidence relating to the issue as to whether a civil penalty wll
affect the operator's ability to remain in business is within the
operator's control, resulting in a rebuttable presunption that
the operator's ability to continue in business will not be
affected by the assessnent of a civil penalty. Therefore, I find
that a penalty otherw se properly assessed in Docket No. WEVA
80-379 will not inpair Consol's ability to continue in business.

VI. Conclusions of Law

1. Consolidation Coal Conpany and its Shoemaker M ne have
been subject to the provisions of the 1977 Mne Act at all tines
rel evant to these proceedi ngs.

2. Under the 1977 Mne Act, the Adm nistrative Law Judge
has jurisdiction over the subject matter of, and the parties to,
t hese proceedi ngs.

3. Federal nmine inspector Charles Coffield was a duly
aut hori zed representative of the Secretary of Labor at all tines
relevant to the issuance of Citation No. 633821, Novenber 26,
1979, 30 C F.R 0O75.301.

4. The violation charged in Gtation No. 633821, Novenber
26, 1979, 30 C.F.R 075.301, is found to have occurred as
al | eged.

5. The violation charged in Ctation No. 633821, Novenber
26, 1979, 30 C.F.R [O75.301, was of such nature as could
significantly and substantially contribute to the cause and
effect of a mne safety or health hazard.

6. Al of the conclusions of law set forth in Part V,
supra, are reaffirmed and incorporated herein.

VII. Proposed Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons of Law

MSHA and Consol filed posthearing briefs. Consol filed a
reply brief. Such briefs, insofar as they can be considered to
have cont ai ned proposed findings and concl usi ons, have been
considered fully, and except to the extent that such findings and
concl usi ons have been expressly or inpliedly affirmed in this
decision, they are rejected on the grounds that they are, in
whole or in part, contrary to the facts and | aw or because they
are immterial to the decision in these cases.
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VIIl. Penalty Assessed

Upon consideration of the entire record in these cases and
the foregoing findings of fact and conclusions of law, | find
that the assessment of a penalty in Docket No. WEVA 80-379 is
warranted as foll ows:

Citation No. Dat e 30 CF.R Standard Penal ty
633821 11/ 26/ 79 75. 301 $600
ORDER

Accordingly, IT 1S ORDERED that the determ nation of
Sept enber 18, 1980, affirm ng the dism ssal of the proposal for a
penalty in Docket No. WEVA 80-379 as relates to Citation No.
633657, Novenber 19, 1979, 30 C F.R [75.303 be, and hereby is,
REAFFI RVED

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that the notice of contest in Docket
No. WEVA 80-160-R be, and hereby is, DENIED;, and that G tation
No. 633821, Novenber 26, 1979, 30 C.F.R [75.301 be, and hereby
i s, AFFI RVED.

I T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat Respondent pay a civil penalty in
Docket No. WEVA 80-379 in the anount of $600 within the next 30
days.

John F. Cook

Admi ni strative Law Judge
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAL
~FOOTNOTE_ONE

1 The proposal for a penalty filed in Docket No. WEVA 80-379
al so enconpassed Ctation No. 633657, Novenber 19, 1979, 30
C.F.R 075.303. Ctation No. 633657 was al so the subject matter
of the notice of contest proceeding in Docket No. WEVA 80-158-R
Al matters relating to Citation No. 633657 were di sposed of on
July 22, 1980, by the granting of various notions in the two
cases resulting in the vacation of GCtation No. 633657 and the
di smssal of the proposal for a penalty insofar as it related to
such citation. This disposition was affirned by an order issued
on Septenber 18, 1980.

~FOOTNOTE_TWO
2 See n. 1, supra.

~FOOTNOTE_THREE

3 The five North Face section was a two-mi ner section. The
other miner was mning in one of the entries on the right side of
the Five North Face section (Tr. 89).

~FOOTNOTE_FQOUR
4 I nspector Coffield and M. Phares denonstrated
consi derabl e di sagreenent as relates to the condition of the two



check curtains. Inspector Coffield testified that check curtain
No. 1 was loose in a few places around the edges, but that it was
basically up and basically sound (Tr. 29, 33-34). He further
testified that check curtain No. 2 was al nost conpletely torn
down, with approximately two-thirds of it down and the remaining
one-third of it up (Tr. 29, 31-33). M. Phares testified at one
poi nt that |Inspector Coffield and he cane through curtain No. 2,
and that he did not recall it being down (Tr. 72). Simlarly,
M. Phares testified at another point that he did not recall any
problemw th check curtain No. 1 or check curtain No. 2 (Tr.
83-84).

| accept the inspector's testinony on this point
because he affirmatively testified as to the condition of the two
check curtains. M. Phares testinony that he did not recal
check curtain No. 2 being down is not an affirmative statenent
that the curtain was up. Simlarly, his testinony that he did
not recall any problemw th either curtain is not an affirmative
statement that no probl ens existed.

~FOOTNOTE_FI VE

5 The foundation for Consol's argument that a location in
the I ast open crosscut between the No. 1 and No. 2 entries
constitued a valid place for nmeasurenment is further w thout
foundati on because Consol has not shown any provisions in the
ventilation plan which would have authorized any part of the No.
2 entry as an intake air course. The only portions of the
ventilation plan which apply to this situation would indicate
that there is no foundation for the use of No. 2 entry for intake
air.

~FOOTNOTE_SI X

6 Inspector Coffield testified that he had taken nethane
readi ngs on different occasions and had obtai ned readi ngs of .8
percent, .9 percent and possibly 1.2 percent. He further
testified that methane has been found in excessive quantities
even back on the belt lines (Tr. 35).

~FOOTNOTE_SEVEN

7 The nost |ogical and effective nethod would be to set
forth definitions for the terns "intake air course," "return air
course,"” "intake air," and "return air" in Part 75 of Title 30 of
t he Code of Federal Regul ati ons.



